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Reach Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES® REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the
charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of both &
trustees’ report, and a direciors’ report under company law.

The Academy Trust operates a single school, Reach Academy Feltham, with a second free school approved to
open in September 2024. Reach Academy Feltham is a school for pupils aged four-nineteen serving a catchment
area in TW13 and TW14. There is also a nursery for two and three year oids. The nursery has capacity for 16
two year olds attending for 15 hours a week, 52 three year olds atfending for 15 hours a week and 13 three year
oids attending for 30 hours a week. The school has two forms of entry {30 children per form) from Reception
through to Year 11 with a capacity of 840 children, plus a Sixth Form. In the Summer 2023 census we had 422
pupils in Reception-Year 8, 305 pupils in Year 7-11 and 109 pupils in Year 12-13.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust. The
trustees of Reach Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company
law. The charitable company operaies as Reach Academy Trust.

Details of the trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounis are approved are included in
{he Reference and Administrative Details on pages 1 and 2.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute fo the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.
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Reach Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Trustees' indemnities

Method of Recruitment and Appoiniment er Election of Trustees

The management of the Academy Trust is the responsibility of the Trustees who are elected and co-opted
under the terms of the Academy Trust governing decumsent. The Trustess may appoint Trustees, whose term of
office shall be four years, save that this time limit shall not apply to the CEQ who shall be treated for all
purposes as being an ex-officic Trustee. Subject fo remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any
Trustee may be reappointed or re-elected. The Trustees who served during the year are listed on page 1.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The training and induction procedures for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience. Where
necessary induction will include training on educational, legal and financial and safeguarding matters. All new
Trustees are given the opportunity of a tour of the facilities, have the chance to meet with staff and students and
are provided with copies of key documents, such as policies, procedures, accounts, budgets, plans and other
documents they need to fulfil their role as Trustees. As there is expected ic be only a small number of new
Trustees each year, induction will be tailored specifically to the individual and include provision of an induction
pack alongside induction meetings.

Organisational Structure

The Academy Trust's organisational structure consists of several levels: the Members, the Trustees, and the
Senior Leadership Team (SLT), with the Local Governing Body at school ievel. The Members meet on an annual
basis o receive the annual accounts, note any Trustee appointmenis or reappointments, consider and approve
any proposed change to external auditor, and review the overall operation of the Academy Trust. The Trustees
are responsible for setting strategy and direction, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring its financial
and operational performance and making strategic decisions about the direction of the Academy Trust, approving
major items of expenditure and making senior staff appcintments. The Local Governing Body is responsibie for
supporting and challenging the schooi’'s Co-Headteachers, monitoring the school's performance and supporting
the smooth running of the school. All groups have approved terms of reference, which are set out in the Trust's
scheme of delegation. During the year in question, the MAT Board met on seven occasions. The SLT controis
the Academy Trust at an executive level, implements the policies laid down by the Trusitees and reports back to
them. Members of the SLT are responsible for developing and implementing Academy Trust plans, which seek
to deliver the best possible education for its students within the agreed budget and scheme of delegation
approved by the Trustee Board. They are responsible for managing the day-to-day operation of the Academy
Trust, specifically staff, facilities and students.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel comprise the Trustees and Senior Leaders. Trustees are not remunerated in their

capacity as a Trustee. The remuneration of Senior Leaders is determined by the Pay Policy, which is reviewed

annually by the Trustees. The CEQ’s pay is determined by the Chair of the MAT Board and the Pay &
Performance Committee. The school leadership team have their performance management carried out by the
CEO in accordance with the pay policy as approved by Trusiees.
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Reach Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union
officials during the relevant period

Full-time equivaient employee number -

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time

Number of employees

0%

1%-50%

51%-99%

100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Provide the total cost of facility time

Provide the total pay bill

Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent
on facility time, calculaied as:
(total cost of facility time + total pay bill) x 100

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a
percentage of total paid facility time hours
caloulated as:

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities
by relevant union officials during the relevant
period + total paid facility time hours) x 100
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Reach Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
The Academy Trust does not have any formal relaticnships with other schools in the geographical or any other
area but will seek to build such relationships as they evoive.

Ed Vainker is a Trusiee of Hounslow Education Partnership, which Is a related party. In the year 22-23 the
Trust received services from the Hounslow Education Partnership. The invoices throughout the year amounted
to £6,083.54. Ed Vainker became a Trustee of Confederation of School Trusts in summer 2022. In the academic
ysar 2022-23 the trust paid £270 in membership fees.

Rebecca Cramer is a Trustee of First Give. In 2022-23 a payment of £5600 was made for the First Give
Programme which Year 8 took part in.

The Reach Foundation is the corporate member of the Reach Academy Trust. As part of its charitable activities
it runs a cradle to career support organisation called the Reach Children's Hub in Feltham which works closely
with the school and supperis its pupils and families. The Foundation has a service level agreement with the
school to provide administrative and support services to the Reach Children's Hub.
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Reach Academy Trust
(A Company l.imited by Guaraniee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Aims

The Academy Trust's objective is set out in its Articles of Association. This is to establish, maintain, manage
and develop an Academy Trust offering a broad curriculum. In accordance with the Articles of Association the
Academy Trust has adopted a Funding Agreement approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The
Funding Agreement specifies, amongst other things, the basis for admitting students to the Academy Trust, the
catchment area from which students are drawn and curriculum requirements.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

The Trust's vision is that all pupils leave Reach Academy Feltham able to enjoy lives of choice and opportunity.
We do this by giving all pupils the skills, attitudes and academic qualifications to flourish in any career and live
happy and healthy lives, full of choice and cpportunity.

We have four main cutcomes that guide our work:

» Achieve well academically: Children and young people achieve good academic resuits and leave
school prepared for the next stage. Families are actively invoived in their education.

e Be safe and well-supported: Children and young people are free from harm and Krnow how 1o keep
themselves safe. They are well-supported at home.

« Be healthy: Children and young people are physically, socially and emotionally healthy.

e Develop strong relationships and networks: Children and young people have strong peer and family
relationships and engage positively with their local community.

Pupils achieving well academically is the key aim of Reach Academy Feltham, driving everything that we do.
We believe that academic success is the foundation that enables a life of cholce and opportunity. A sirong core
academic foundation will unlock opportunity for our young people enabling them all {o leave Reach with a clear
vision for their future and an achievable plan to make that vision a reality. We believe that the other three
outcomes we strive for, listed above, complement that academic achievement and make it more likely that our
pupils will flourish.

Achieving our vision requires a community-wide, relentiess pursuit of excellence. At Reach Academy Feltham
we have defined ‘Our Way’, a set of five statements, which ouiline how we all conduct ourselves:

¢ We unashamedly hold each other and curselves accountable for excepticnal pupil outcomes at every age
and stage by having timely and brave conversations, which challenge ourselves and each other.

e We are clear about what is expected of us because those who lead us explain and exemplify warm-sirict
high standards and we live by our values, upholding them even when no one is waiching us because
we are proud of our teammates, our school and ourselves.

¢ We take full responsibility for the part we play in positively influencing the future of ourselves, our
teammates and our colleagues and we unleash the potential in others and ourselves by leaning into

leadership.

» We actively engage with cognitive science and subject expertise so that the quality of education remains
exceptional. We always produce our very best work and invest in developing others and ourselves
because this is how we will make progress.

@ We recognise that success and humility go hand in hand so we seek to iearn from and share with others
and we celebrate successes all of the time and we always sweat the small stuff because little things
matier.
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Reach Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guaraniee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and Performance

The academic year 2022-23 continued the return to life pre-pandemic for the school, whilst pushing forwards in
new and exciting ways. We know that at the heart of what we do is our strength in a relational approach, and
that this has supported us through the turmoll since January 2020, and continues to drive our achievements.
There is a palpable sense of community at Reach Academy Feltham. We are on a mission to eradicate
educational disadvantage in Feltham, and achieving it requires intelligent, empathetic leadership and carefully
crafted teamwork.

This year has been successful across the school. It has been the first full year that we have completed with a
Co-Headteacher model, and we have seen the benefits of a collaborative approach across Primary and
Secondary. We have defined ‘Our Way', a sef of five staiements, which cutline how we all conduct ourselves at
Reach Academy Feltham which are seen above. This year we introduced our ‘always aims’, a set of 21 priorities
that we believe would lead to exemplary cutcomes. Each term we looked at these 21 priorities and chose a small
number to focus on within each of our key areas: Culture and Relationships, Curticulum and Assessment, and
Teaching, Learning and Professional Development. This focus has allowed us to pivot to areas of priority
throughout the year whilst always remaining focused on our vision.

The main areas of strength this year have been those which have focusad on developing whole-school
approaches, for exarnple, the introduction of our longitudinal assessment system, or school-wide work on
diversity and inclusion. We have also looked to the future, using our parinership with Hampton Scheol and Lady
Eleanor Holles at Feltham Coliege to begin o feed into work we do lower down the school to build aspiraticns
and develop a clear pathway to adulthood for all pupils.

Autumn Term

Pupils, staff and families were eager to return to school in September 2022, refreshed after the summer break.
As always, we focussed on settling the pupils in, making sure that they understood how to be successful at
school and supporied their well-being so that they felt safe and ready to learn, especially as this was the first
year that the impact of covid was not being felt on a day-to-day basis. At the start of the year, the leadership
team, with the new Co-Headteacher roles, focused on two main areas of focus for the school - being “all-through’
and ensuring that every single pupil was achieving well.

From the beginning, working with the Senior Leadership Team {SLT) and the Middle Leadership Team (MLT)
during INSET day, these core members of staff created a set of principles that guides the whole-school
approach to leadership; supporting the school staff to work together. Both SLT and MLT then received training
on puiting these core principles into practice. Without the Covid restrictions, the leadership team looked at
encouraging more all-through collaboration, for example through re-introducing the whole-school shoutouts on
& Friday morning.

We explored the role that every single child should play in the success of the school by focusing on data, using
an INSET day to introduce the longitudinal assessment system that tracks pupils’ progress across Year 1-8. All
staff received training to create ‘class context sheets’, detailing the background and current attainment
information for each child in their classroom. This has supported all teachers to think deeply about each child
hoth before and during lessons and teaching episodes.

We supported a significant number of new staff to successfully join the school or to migrate to new roles, at
qualified teacher level, trainee teacher level and support staff level. A revamped induction programme ensured
a strong start by these staff. We ensured that we were able to build relationships with parents and pupils,
holding a PTA quiz, a Christmas Fair and a number of trips for students including Year 13 students watching
‘Othello’ at the National Theatre, a number of trips to places of religious worship, and an exciting return to
many more school sports fixtures.
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Reach Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Spring Term

Spring term was a very busy term at Reach Academy as pupils worked hard across the school, particularly those
in exam groups who were preparing for exiernal examinations. This was the return to pre-pandemic grade
boundaries for GCSE and A Level papers, and sc those vear groups in particular focused on the task in hand.
During the spring term UCAS offers came rolling in from a wide range of universities and the first students started
their journeys towards high level apprenticeships.

Year 11 studenis spent a week of their Easter holiday in Holyport revising for their GCSEs and cementing their
self-management skills in time for a period of intense revision.

We had a number of enrichment opportunities during Spring Term that gave multiple studenis opportunities to
explore their passions. We saw a return to productions with Phase 2 performing the Roald Dahl version of
Little Red Riding Hood. Over 50 children took part, singing, dancing and acting. We alsc had the first ‘Reach
Has Got Talent’ which caused a stir across Phase 1 and Phase 2 with lots of children demonstrating a huge
amount of courage to leamn lyrics, play instruments and, for the four finalisis, sing in front of the whole Primary
school. OQur Year 9 students have been working with local charities for their First Give programme, and we
were treated to two impassioned presentations on the Awards Evening. We feel passionately that these
enriching opportunities truly support our children to move ever closer to our shared vision of a life of choice
and opportunity for all.

Summer Term

This summer saw the students in Year 11 complete their GCSE exams and the students in Year 13 complete
their A level and BTEC examinations. In Key Stages 1 and 2 pupils completed their SATs examinations and
multiplication checks and those in Year 1 took the phonics screen. In Reception staff made final judgements
about whether students had reached a ‘Good Levet of Development’.

We resumed ail normal summer activities for students such as Sports Day, the Annual Summer Fair and
residential trips. We took pupils o Jamie's Farm, Tile Barn in the New Forest, Holyport, the Isle of Wight and a
sleepover on our school farm space!

The year culminated in the Summer Fair, bringing together the whole school community to ceiebrate being able
o be back together and enjoy some fun in the sunshine supporting small local businesses and raising money
for the school.

Objectives and progress against them

As explored above, we introduced our ‘always aims’, a set of 21 priorities that we believe will lead o exempiary
outcomes. Each term we reflected on these 21 priorities and chose a small number to focus on within each of
our key areas as ‘development priorities’. The key areas are Culture and Relationships, Curricuium and
Assessment, and Teaching, Learning and Professional Development. The progress against the develcpment
priorities in each key area is summarised beiow.

Culture and Relationships:
in 2022-23 we had four broad areas of priorities within our Culiure and Relationship strand, relating to four

different ‘Always Aims’.

1. Ensuring excellent behaviour {Autumn and Summer) AA1: Students’ behaviour, inside and outside the
classroom, positively impacts leamning.

2 Developing Diversity Policies (Autumn and Spring) AA8: Diversity is celebrated and an inclusive
environment ensures every child thrives.

3. Team Reach Curriculum (Autumn, Spring and Summer) AA2: An evidence based approach is used to
support the pupils’ personal and social development, using early intervention to maximise impact.

4. Student Leadership {Spring and Summer) AAB: Pupils engage in a broad range of enrichment acfivities,
inciuding those in school and the wider community.
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Reach Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Ensuring excellent behaviour was a key driver at the siart of the year, focusing on supporting new feachers’
inductions to the school across all the phases. Our CPD programme was delivered separately for new staff,
intensively supporting them to learn the routines and systems within the schooi. By using frequent staff surveys
and pupil voice, we were able to respond quickly over the course of the year {o areas of concern, changing
CPD and introducing changes to the behaviour system {o ensure a positive culiure throughout the year.

We began the year by listening fo staff, pupils and parents about the ways in which we ccould better support
diversity and equality and collecting feedback 1o enable us to write our new policy. We formed a working
group, cchducted listening workshops and convened a working group to collaboratively write the DEI
statement, and used an INSET day to launch the process of a curriculum review by inviting Bennie Kara to
discuss diversity within the curriculum. Using this as a launchpad, we asked Curriculum Directors and Subject
Leads to evaluate their curriculum through the lens of diversity.

We focused on building the Team Reach curriculum throughout the whole year. There was a significant piece
of replanning carried out in Cycle 1, and there were steps taken to ensure that this was “all-through’ by
dedicating two members of cross-phase SLT to this focus. We focused particularty on the more sensitive areas
of the curriculum, for example, an all staff SRE training was ied by externals. We engaged with external
professionals fo review our SRE lessons and how they are taught, particularly thinking about more facilitative
techniques. This culminated in a Team Reach Day focusing on SRE in Cycle 3.

We identified that although there were many student leadership oppertunities throughout the school, we
wanted to look at ways that we coulid increase the number of opportunities and broaden the number of pupils
involved. After a review of the opportunities available, we held an application process with nine pupils applying
for the position of Student Principal, and after shortlisting the applicants down to four, we held a hustings
across Phase 3 and 4, resulting in a new Student Principal and Vice Principal. We developed a weekly
opportunity for the Student Principal to lead a Pupil Voice session, asking the Student Principal to give
feedback to SLT.

Curriculum and Assessment:
in 2022-23 we had four broad areas of pricrities within our Curriculum and Assessment strand, relating to four

different ‘Always Aims’,

1. Giving regular feedback (Autumn and Spring) AA4: Teachers give regular and timeiy feedback so that
pupils can articulate their aitainment and the progress they are making.

2. Implement and evaluate the longitudinal assessment system (Autumn and Spring) AA3: Longitudinal
assessment systems allow us to scrutinise and communicate how much of the curriculum pupils have
remembered and understood over time.

3. Reading and the use of data to support pupils (Autumn, Spring and Summer) AAG: Early reading
success translates info children’s ability 1o comprehend complex texts and enjoy reading through to
sixth form and beyond.

4. Spelling (Autumn) AAS5: Curriculum is designed with opportunities in mind to allow pupils to craft their
communication skilis.

Aiming to balance the need for more feedback within books alongside staff workload, we focused on live
marking and whole class feedback as two major ways that teachers couid provide more feedback without
extensive writien feedback. In CPD, we offered a number of strategies that feachers could employ, and shared
best practice from across departments.

After introducing a new style of longitudinal assessment system at the beginning of the academic year, the
focus throughout this year was ensuring that all staff understoed how to use the system and how to measure
success against it. This is a highly innovative approach within an ail-through school and we have invested
significant time in CPD to allow all staff fo understand their role in a pupil’s journey.
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Reach Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

We invested in NGRT reading age tests, completing them twice to provide us with reliable data on reading
ages. This showed us some fascinating data - namely that our pupils who had been with us since Reception
were up to three years ahead of their peers who joined us at a later date.

This suggests that our early reading programmes are successful. However, the NGRT test results also
demonstrated that there was a minority of students who had a reading age significantly lower than their
chronological age, and we delivered whole school reading CPD to support staff to teach reading in all lessons.
We invested in the library, including for the Sixth Form Library, alongside starting two specific reading
challenges. In Autumn, a new spelling scheme was introduced from Year 2 based on a continuation of
phonstic knowledge and building pupils’ knowledge and understanding of grapheme-phoneme
correspondence. Teachers were surveyed on the implementation of the new scheme and SLT dropped into
iessons to observe the teaching of spelling specifically.

Teaching, Learning and Professional Development:
in 2022-23 we had four broad areas of priorities within our Curriculum and Assessment strand, relating to four
different ‘Always Aims’.

1. A clear focus on every child (Autumn) AA1: All staff demonstrate a relentless focus on every child.

New Staff are well inducted and confident within the school (Autumn) AA3: All staff benefit from effective
induction.

2

3. Governors and trustees knowledge of the school (Autumn) AA5: Governors and Trustees support and
challenge in equal measure.

4

Teachers teach consistently high quality lessons, using a variety of evidence-based strategies (Spring,
Summer) AA2: Effective learning is facilitated by consistent, excellent teaching.

We wanted to focus on the small number of pupils who were in receipt of the pupil premium or identified as
needing SEN support who were not making progress in line with their peers. As a school, we took time to delve
into class context sheets and ensured that all staff, particularly new staff, were clear on the needs of different
pupils and how to meet them to ensure rapid progress. The SENCos identified key areas of development and
were able to give training to both teachers and TAs to support their knowledge of strategies to support all
learners in the classroom.

Evaluating and redesigning our practices to support new staff induciion started prior to the end of the summer
term with an induction day and continued throughout the autumn term where new members of staff had a
separate CPD session to train them on the basic habits, in accordance with our Teaching and Learning Rubric.
This additional CPD alongside our reguiar instructional coaching sessions supporied new staff to feel confident
in their classrooms and part of the Reach community.

in Autumn 2022, we appointed a new Chair of the Local Governing Body. in line with this new appoiniment, to
support the knowledge that the Governors had of the school, we introduced preseniations inic each Governors
meeting that focused on one of our three strands. This supported Governors' understanding of the pedagogy
and practices that underpinned the school, particularly In light of changes that had been made over the last
year. We developed the Governors’ Handbook that laid out the key information that Governors needed to know
to support them fo come to meetings prepared to interrogate and support different aspects of the school, as
well as organising a number of Governor visits. The Chair of Governors visited at least once per term and
undertook lesson visits and pupil and staff voice meetings, as well as more detailed conversations with specific
members of staff. Additionaliy, we conducted an in depth externally commissioned governance review which
led to suggested action points which we have taken forward at Board and Local Governing Body level.
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Reach Acadeiny Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Our teaching and learning handbook drives our rapid pupil progress, and we continued to use this throughout
the year to ensure that consistency in the classrooms built success. We planned a series of CPD that focused
on effective exposition, this included sessions on cognitive science, the use of diagrams and effsctive
activation of prior knowledge, as well as a focus on means of participation. Having bought in the NGRT iests, it
became apparent that we needed to ensure that all staff were teaching and developing pupils' reading and
writing throughout the curriculum. As a result, in the summer term, staff attended weekly CPD that focused on
the teaching and developing of reading and writing. Through learning walks and coaching, we were able to
ensure that this was being delivered and high standards were beihg upheld in every classroom to support all
pupils with more regular practice of literacy skills. Through our instructional coaching action steps, we could
see the direct impact of this CPD both with regards to excellent practice in class but also the key next steps
being given to teachers to improve their practice.

Key Performance Indicators

Pupil numbers

fn 2022-2023, the school was full in all vear groups from Nursery to Year 11. The PAN is 80 for each year group
from Reception - Year 11. In Sixth Form 2022-23 there were 10% pupils in the May census. The school is
oversubscribed. In 2022-2023, there were 328 Reception applications for 80 places; 144 of those were first
preferences.

Pupii Premium
The average number of pupils in the school eligible for the Pupil Premium Grant was 44.2% of each cohort. In

some year groups that increased to 59.3%.

SEND
In 2022-23 Reach Academy had an average of 3% of its student popuiation with EHCPs, this rises to 5.3% in
secondary phases, and an average of 15.7% of its student populatfion on the SEN Register.

LAC/PLAC
In 2022-23, there were 5 Looked After Children and 11 Previously Looked After Children at Reach Academy.

Attendance
Attendance in 2022-23 was excellent in primary and strong In comparison to national data in secondary.

Attendance in Primary phases last year was 95.19% with a persistent absentee rate of 7.8% in Summer term.

Attendance in Secondary phases last year was 93.13% with a persistent absentee rate of 16.7% in Summer
term.

These high levels of aftendance are due to the careful messaging to families and students about the importance
of attendance alongside a forensic attention to data and robust systems. We built on the strategic work
undertaken in the previous year to ensure continuous improvement to attendance. One specific area we have
developed our strategy is around nudge texts, encouraging attendance through low-stakes communications.
This strategy has been research based and has proved successful in our trials thus far.

We have some students with significant and compiex medical needs, which means that they fall inio the category
of persistent absentee, but they were well supported to access the curriculum from home using a remote learning
process that has been in place since before the pandemic.

We continued to take on the work of the Education Welfare Officer such as home visits and doorsiep checks
because we have strong relationships with our families. We also continued to work closely with the staff in the
Hub and our Family Support Worker and, where relevant, the SEND team, to ensure a joined up approach to
tackling poor attendance.
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Reach Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

All-through retention

Last year we achieved the set target of no more than 10% atirition between year 6 and year 7. However, this
vear we had thirteen pupils leave in Year §, ten for grammar schools, two because of geographical relocation
and one for a local school. We will, again, be holding an ‘introduction to Secondary School’ evening for Years 4,
5 and 6 in the Autumn term alongside further one-fo-one conversations with the Co-Headteachers to reduce that
number.

Behaviour and Suspensions
Behaviour at Reach Academy is excelient. Behaviour management systems are sirong and based on clear
rewards and sanctions which motivate children to make good choices.

At Reach Academy Feltham we belisve that a warm, weicoming, calm and orderly environment is key fo pupils
being able to learn and develop. We set clear expectations and ensure consisiency of routines across the school
so that all staff and students can focus on leamning. All staif, taking into account the particular needs of pupils,
apply our behaviour policies consistently and fairly. We focus on culture with our traines teachers and those new
to Reach each September because we know that this sets the scene for excellent learning.

We work tirelessly to educate ourselves, the pupils and the wider community about all aspects of child-on-child
abuse, bullying and discrimination so that pupiis feel safe, listened to and supported oniine or offline. We log and
analyse all forms of harassment and discrimination and look for patterns and further actions we can take. Any
instances of such behaviours are not accepted and are dealt with quickly, consistently and effectively whenever
they occur.

At Reach Academy Feitham we believe in being warm-strict. We do not simply teli pupils how to behave, we
teach them what to do so that they can learn and be successfui. We ensure consistency by providing models
and creating time for deliberate practice in morning meetings.

Expectations are equally high across the school and our systems are age-appropriate. Where helpful we
provided pupils with opportunities to be peer [eaders working with younger students as role models.

In total there were 31 suspensions over the year {30 in secondary and 1 in primary) and 3 permanent exclusions.
Suspension rates remained consistent with the previous year, which was a significant decrease from pre-Covid.

In secondary phases, only two of the suspensions have been repeat pupils. The iow number of suspensions and
the very low number of repeat suspensions demonstrates that the reintegration process and ongoing coaching
of pupils following an exclusion is working well and preventing pupils from being re-excluded.

Safeguarding and pupil well-being
We use Team Reach as the umbrella for all things te do with personai, social, moral and spiritual development.
We also use it as the vehicie through which we embed our school values (reflect, endeavour, aspire, show

courage and have fun).

Pupils take part in daily collective discussion around topical issues at lunchtime and in form time and focus. They
have weekly assemblies on topical issues and the school values where they are aclive participants. We
encourage the pupils’ spiritual growth and exploration.

We work closely with other agencies where their expertise enhances the outcome of what we do in school. We
have Place2Be counseliing service in school 4 days per week. In 2022-23, Place2Be supported 32 pupils in one-
to-one counselling. In total, 114 children were additionally seen across 295 Place2Talk drop-in sessions; 9 of
these were planned group sessions. There were 32 sessions held with staff via the Place2Think offer and 50
sessions with parents.

We have a staff Mental Health Champion and talk to the students from Nursery upwards about how to seif-
regulate using many techniques. We also have excellent relationships with the school police officer.
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In 2022-23, we continued to run Family Group, In which we work with children and their parents through & child-
cenired therapeutic process that is run by an external psychotherapist and a member of Reach staff. The group
consisted of five families. At the end of the Summer ferm, 2 Year 6 children graduated from Family Group. We
run monthly coffee momings for carers and guardians as an opportunity for them fo receive mutual support. In
Nursery and Reception, as part of joining Reach Academy, parents were given the option to sign up to a Family
Links programme called Playful Parenting, while parents with pupils joining Year 7 and above were given the
option to take part in Talking Teens. We also ran a SENsitive group, offering a supporiive space to parents
whose children have special educaticnal needs and disabilities.

Our RSE policy was updated in 2021 in line with the upcoming changes in the RSE Curriculum. We have robust
conversations with any parenis who express a desire to withdraw their child from RSE. Content is delivered in
Team Reach lessons and via a Team Reach day in Secondary. We bring in extermnal expertise where we deem
it helpful to do so e.g. Brook Advisory Centre and LVA.

Our pupils are fully engaged in life beyond the school and this takes many forms, from learning in classrooms to
volunteering and working evening and weekend jobs for our older pupils.

We discuss British vaiues as part of our assembly plan and they are displayed in the school where everyone can
see. We reference them throughout our curricula. We take diversity and inclusion work extremely seriously. We
have a very active Pride Club for LGBTQ+ students in Phase 3 and above.

In 2022-23 we had 3 Team Reach days where the whole school was off timetable and focussed on a particular
topic. The first in the Autumn term was ‘Bright Futures Ahead Day’ focussed on careers and future pathways.
We have many external providers joining us. The second was a day to explore Health and Wellbeing, and the
final one was an SRE day. Pupils are supported to engage deeply, sensitively and thoughtfully with issues that
can create conflict in their lives and the lives of others, for example the Russia-Ukraine conflict.

In line with the guidance issued by Ofsted in June 2021 we openly discuss and challenge all incidents of a sexual
nature.

Children report having a positive and trusting relationship with staff and we have staff whose job role is clearly
defined and separate from teaching, learning and behaviour. We keep a log of all incidents and periodically
analyse them and look for frends. We take the clear approach of assuming that sexual harassment and online
sexual abuse is happening here at Reach and we educate ourselves and our community to take positive action
against any such behaviours.

As well as work internally, we continued to lead the local Community Action Partnership Panet in 2022-23
ensuring a multi-agency and contextualised approach o local safeguarding.

All staff had a full induction in 2022-23 and in most cases new staff spent time in school in the summer term
before their formal induction process in August. All staff underwent annual safeguarding and Prevent training
and know where to find relevant policies and updates to KCSIE. All staff are also trained in recognising the signs
FGM and understand their responsibilities when it comes 1o reporting.

The Single Central Register is always up to date and checked regularly by the Designated Safeguarding Lead.

Progress and attainment

The intent behind our curriculum is to provide a broad, balanced and knowledge-rich experience for our pupils.
Learning is sequenced to ensure that all pupils acquire knowledge, lifetime skills, qualifications and cuitural
capital to enjoy happy and fuifilled lives of cheice and opportunity. To ensure consistency of approach and depth
of subject knowledge, booklets are used in certain subjects to effectively support teaching and learning.

We centre our curriculum offer around the nafional curriculum, providing the opportunity for all pupils to study
the full EBACC offer. In 2020 EBACC entry was 78%, in 2021 it was 84%, in 2022 it was 87%, and last year, in
2023, it was 92% - well above the Ofsted target of 75% by 2022.
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Our curriculum is backwards planned using our awarenass of what success at A Level, BTEC, future learning
and employment looks like. We hold our most vulnerable learners in mind when planning o ensure that they
have equal access to all opportunities in school and beyond school. We provide a post-16 offer that is aspirational
and supports studenis’ learning and progression, enabling them to work towards achieving their goals.

From before pupils jein us, we engage them and their families in aspirational goal setiling for life beyend school.
This involves meeting families in their homes, inviting them into school and visiting pupils in their previous
settings.

Trustees are delighted with the performance of pupils across the schoo! in external examinations and
assessment rounds.

In 2020-21 we were an early adopter of the new Development Matters which replaces the Early Years Foundation
Stage Framework; this work continued into 2021-22. This move places a far greater emphasis on pupil learning
and the importance of high quality interactions in the early years. In 2022-23 from low starting poinis, 78% of our
pupils achieved a Good Level of Development.

98% of pupile in Year 1 passed the phonics screen. The one pupil who did not pass was a late joiner to the
school and will be supported to rapidly get on frack.

Qur Year 2 cohort took SATS papers in June. 82% of pupils achieved expected standard or higher (10.3%
achieved GDS) in reading, writing and maths combined. For pupils eligible for the Pupii Premium that figure was
70%. In Reading 82% of pupils achieved expsctsad standard or higher (22% GDS), in writing 82% (10% GDS)
and in mathematics 85% of pupils achieved expected standard or higher (256% GDS).

In the Year 4 multiplication check, 75% achieved full marks, a 20% increase on last year.

In Year 6 our students sat their SATS examinations and staff undertook rigorous moderation to ensure accuracy
of results. 70% of students achieved the expected standard or higher in reading, writing and maths combined
{20.3% achieved GDS). 53.8% of puplls eligible for Premium Premium achieved expected standard or higher in
all three subjects combined. in reading 83% of pupils achieved the expected standard or higher (40.7% of those
were GDS). In writing 83.1% of pupils achieved the expected standard (30.5% GDS) and in maths 81.4% of
pupils achieved at least the expected standard with 40.7% of those achieving the greater depth standard. This
data put us in the 94th percentile for reading progress, 97th percentile for mathematics progress and 99th
percentile nationally for writing progress.

Further up the school the pupils sat GCSE, A Level and BTEC examinations. Our A Level results were the best
we had achieved, and ranked us with some of the highest outcomes in Hounslow across a rahge of measures.

GCSE Results

Whole cohort

EBACC antry = 92%

4+ in English & Maths = 80%

5+ in English & Maths = 59%
Progress § =05

Attainment 8 = 50.3

EBacc Average Point Score = 4.81

Disadvantaged Pupils
EBACC eniry = 89%

4+.in English & Maths = 66%
5+ in English & Maths = 31%
Progress 8=0.2

Aftainment 8 = 44.17
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A Level Results
A*=8.1%
*-A=264%
A*-B=69.1%
A*-C=873%
A*-E=100%

BTEC Resuits

Average Points/Grades

Business (Extended Certificate) P
Business (Diploma) DM/MM
HSC (Extended Certificate) M

HSC (Dipioma) DD/DM
HSC {Extended Diploma) DDD

Sixth Form Destinations

Qf the 55 pupils that took gualifications, 49 applied for 2 university place. 37 (78%) students were placed in
thelr firm university choice with 8 (19%) students placed in their insurance university choice. 2 students
successfully received offers through clearing and 2 students will be retaking Year 13 and reapplying io
university.

Qut of the students that achieved a university place in 2022-23, 50% students will be attending a Russell
Group university. This was 5% more than our target for this year and an increase on previous years. 78%
of students will be attending a top third university. The puplis who decided to move into apprenticeships
were successful in competitive industries.

All students were very well supported via staff In school and Feltham Futures to make decisions about their
future pathways. There were regular opportunities fo engage with external mentors, employers and advisors,
for example via mock interviews or careers insighis sessions.

Reach On, Careers and Work Experience

Our vision is that all students will leave Reach Academy able to enjoy a life of choice and opportunity. We
construct our careers education and support students post school via Reach On, our student alumni
programme, to ensure that vision becomes a reality.

Students in Phase 3 benefitted from goal-setting and Phase 4 received a mixture of soft skills workshops and
talks dedicated fo career path options. Year 11 students at risk of NEET and those with AEN attended careers
advisor sessions provided by Connexions at Hounslow and continued their mentoring programme with Future
Frontiers. Phase 5 studenis received a comprehensive programme of sessions on vision, aspirations and
organisation, in addition to workshops on university preparation, student finance and degree level
apprenticeships. Destinations Week took place in the Spring term where pupils visited a number of different
universities across the UK. The schoo! has progressed towards our goal of achieving all eight Gatsby
Benchmarks; we have made significant progress in six of the measures and we are now at 100% for
benchmarks 3 and 5. The strategic objectives of the Careers Tearn for this academic year and our continued
partnerships with local employers and further education providers will ensure progress is continued to be made
cn the remaining benchmarks.

Feltham Futures was fully embedded in the work of the Hub and the school in 2022-23, with a new member of
staff working alongside the previous employee to develop our offer. They provided the foliowing services &
events: coaching meetings with pupils who are at risk of being NEET after school or sixth form, mentoring for
Year 12 students in collaboration with the Career Ready programme, ‘Destinations Week’ in partnership with
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Royal Holloway University, University of West London, St Mary’s Twickenham, Brunel, Southampton and
Oxford Universities, and a series of Employability Skills Workshops for groups of Year 11, Year 12 and Year
13 students who were referred by their teachers. Feltham Futures also assisted in the development of the
‘Join the Dots’ programmaes for the first cohort of Year 13 studentis, an initiative to develop a network of support
for students during the transition to university. Other support included the organisation of local employers’
workshops for Phase 3, workplace visiis for Year 12 and {ailored work experience placements for Year 13
students, as well as Year 11 Sessicns in collaboration with Hounslow Action for Youth develop confidence and
build self-belief in young women.

Feltham College: Parinerships and Pathways

2022-23 saw the culmination of 10 yvears of work in partnership with Hampton Schocl and Lady Eleanor Holles
as we joined together to form Feltham College, with our Inaugural cohort joining in September and a celebration
in October to launch the new college. We were nominated for an award at the Independent Schools Awards for
the partnership work.

Influence and sharing

We continue to lead, parther with, challenge and support our peers in schools locally. Many staff attend local
Subject Networks and coniribute to borough-wide CPD. We have also strengthened our work in other parts of
the country:

Cradle to Career Partnerships and Leadership Programmes

The Reach Cradle to Career model, with Reach Academy Feltham at its heart, is now being shared with the
wider system. This year saw our first leadership programme, South West 100, recruit its second cohort and the
launch of two further aspiring Headteacher programmes, Wesi100, based in the West Country and Yorkshire
100. We have added a further aspiring Trust CEQ programme, Leading Trusts 100, which recruited its first cohort
in Summer 2023. Reach has recruited a third cohort of Cradie fo Career partners and are now working with 27
clusters of schools around the school, supporting them to build coherence in the education that they are providing
and to deepen thelr schools role in the community.

Staffing, staff well-being and workiocad

We run our own nitial Teacher Training Programme in parinership with Bath University and South West Teacher
Training. In 2022-23, 12 teachers trained with us and we retained six of them as ECTs. In total there are currently
twenty-one staif who completed their ITT with us and are siill teaching at Reach.

Teachers at Reach are excellent and committed. We have a robust recruitment process. Quality of teaching is
monitored via our Teaching and Learning Rubric and tracked and evaluated using SISRA Analytics. By Summer
Term 2021-22 75% of SLT drop-ins in secondary were identified as meeting or exceeding the core habits to
facilitate productive and effective iearning - those not meeting the standard were all staff (aside from one) on the
teacher training programme or ECTs. In 2022-23 one member of staff received a formal reprimand. 2.5 days on

average were lost to teacher sickness absence in 2022/23. We did not use external supply staff.
We centralise planning, provide supervision for our senior staff and all staff have access to Place2Be counsellors.

Going Cencern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concem basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Most of the income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)} in the form of recurrent
grants, the use of which is restricted to pariicular purposes.

Unrestricted income, including letlings income, staff consultancy income and other income is shown as
unresiricied funds. The trust is innovative and entrepreneuria!l in its approach to securing additional income for
the school to meet the school's development priorities.

Altogether we raised £59,159 in donations last year through a mixiure of private philanthropic donations,
donations from families, staff and other donations and a Christmas fundrzising campaign.

Expenditure in the year has supported key objectives in ensuring staffing and resources are secured fo meet to
enable our vision. Regular management reports are sent to the Trustees, Audit, Finance and Risk Committes,
and CEC comparing performance against the budget. The Board of Trustees also reviews a 3-year budget
forecast, in order io plan effectively.

Overall the Trust has healthy reserves and cash flow which is used to maintain the current assets and investinto
the school to meet the school’s development priorities.

Reserves Policy

There are no plans to generate a higher return on any future cash balances unless this can be achieved without
increasing counterparty credit risk. Whilst we hold large cash reserves, Trustees are reluctant to invest these in
medium term investments whilst the cost of living crisis, teacher and support staff pay increases and energy
price rises are creating uncertainty for schools. In addition we are opening a second ali-through new free school
in September 2024 which creates an additional potential need for access fo reserves.

At 31 August 2023 the total funds comprised:

Unrestricted £941,862
Restricted: Fixed assetfunds £17,198,367
Other £753,626
£18,893,855

Invesiment Policy
During the year, the Academy Trust heid all its liquid funds in an interest bearing account at a major UK clearing
bank with an A1, P1 short-term credit rating.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks facing the Academy Trust are:

e Trust growth plans distract from ensuring ouftcomes for children attending Reach Academy Feltham
continue to be excellent;

Energy costs are prohibitively high and unfunded;

Recruitment of new staff and refention of high performing staff is insufficient to meet the needs of the
school;

Recruitment of sixth form students is lower than budgeied;

Pupils accessing external exams are not adequately prepared and do not perform as well as they could
have.

FUNDRAISING
The Academy Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising is led by the senior leaders in the
academy. All fundraising undertaken during the year was monitored by the Trustees.
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PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

Trustees look forward to focusing on delivering a great education for children in Feltham, including excellent
outcomes and strong destinations. Priorities include moving forwards with the necessary building work in order
to deliver Reach Academy Hanworth Park opening in September 2024. Trustess are also aware of the changing
landscape around multi-academy trusts and are actively engaging with other local schools to explore what the
benefits of coming together as one multi-academy trust might be.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS
There are no assets subject to custodian arrangements.

AUDITOR
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

» there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware

» the Trustees have taken all steps that they oughi to have faken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Trustees' report, incorp ﬁmﬁmic reporf, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on ‘i{)? X o 2023 and signed on the Board’s behalf by:

Judith Tacon
Trustee

Date 11/12/2023
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SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Reach Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed o
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DIE's Govemnance Handbook and
Competency Framework for Governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO as Accounting Officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propristy and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Reach
Academy Trust and the Secretary of Siate for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board
of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on govemance included here suppiements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trusteas’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formaily met seven times during the year.
The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee met five terms as a group and on each occasion, the Chair of this
Committee reported to the full Board to ensure effective oversight. Attendance during the year at meetings of
the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Judith Tacon{Chair of Trustees)

Jen Baxter

Juliette Cammaerts (Chair of Reach Academy Feltham
LGB; appointed 15 December 2022)

Julia Casson

Rebecca Cramer (CEC & Accounting Officer)

David Dowding {term ended 11 December 2023)
Kimberly Downton (appointed 15 December 2022)

lain Gravestock {Chair of Finance, Audit & Risk, Pay &
Performance and Trust Growth Commitiees)

Jon McGoh

Tom Sawbridge (Chair of Reach Academy Feltham
L.GB; term ended 31 October 2022)

Dennis Simms 6 7
Ed Vainker (term ended 20 September 2023) 5 7
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The Trust Board had a broad coverage of work during the year and there were no major chalienges that arose
in the course of their work. The Board, together with the LGB, received a range of papers and data reports, and
was satisfied with the quality of management reporting provided.

The Board maintained reguiar engagement and oversight of the Trust’s delivery in relation to key risks, inciuding
residual risks following the pandemic. The CEO also maintained regular communication with the Chair of
Trustees and Chair of the LGB in between meetings.

The Board confinued to hold mestings of the Trust Growth Committee during the year, which had been
established in the 2021-22 academic year, to oversee the Trust’s plans to consider any further growth, in line
with the wider policy environment for academy trusts.

Trustees undertook a self-review and skills audit in Spring term. The Board also commissioned an External
Review of Governance in Summer term from an academy trust sector expert, which provided valuable insights
to be implemented during 2023-24. The Board alsc held oversight of Local Goveming Body (LGB) recruitment.
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The Finance, Audit & Risk Committee is a Commitiee of the main Board of Trustees. ifs purpose is to:

e provide independent cversight of and advice to the Trust Board on the adeguacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s risk management, financial control and reporting systems;

s recommend to the Trust Board, and In turn the Members, the appointment of suitable external auditors and
fo advise the Board on internal scrutiny arrangements, faking a risk-based approach to commissioning
topics of each internal audit report;

¢ ensure that adequate levels of external and internal audit are maintained, acting as a point of escalation for
any concerns identified during audit visits and receiving assurance that actions arising from audit visits are
completed;

s undertake detailed review of the annual budget, annual report and accounts, and post-audit report, including
Governance Statement in the Annual Report and Accounis, and recommend the accounts to the Board for
approval;

» oversee the programme of internal scrutiny report, risk register and policies on behalf of the Board;

¢ receive reports on Health & Safety and Fire Safety including outeomes of Audit Reports, progress against
audit actions, premises and estates management activities, in-depth review of the Health & Safety and Fire
Safety policy, health & safety training, and act as a point of escalation for high-risk concerns in the trust;

s receive detailed updates on information fechnology (IT), data protection/ cyber security and whistleblowing;

¢ undertake detailed review of proposed contracts, transacticns and other related requirements arising from
the Academy Trust Handbcok;

e take such decisions as are devoived fo it by the Board - except where the Board has formally delegated
decision-making authority to the Committee, its role is advisory.

As part of reviewing the Trust's governance, Trustees committed during the year {0 re-tender the external audit
in spring 2024, as part of the Trust's commitment fo operating in accordance with the Academy Trust Handbook
published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

MTrustee/ co-opted Commitiee member Meetings attended Out of a possible
lain Gravestock 4 4

Julia Casson 4 4

Amyr Rocha-Lima (co-opted Committee 3 4
member; term ended 11 September 2023)

Judith Tacon 4 4

Confiicts of interest

Reach Academy Trust has a comprehensive process in place to manage any potential conflicts of interest. All
governance stakeholders - including Members, Trustees, Co-opted Committee members and Local Governing
Body members - are required to complete a declaration of interest form at the start of each academic year. This
process is also followed for senior staff. This information is compiled into a register of interests. Updates are
made to the reqgister of interest in-year when ncfiification is given in relation to a change in a governance
stakeholder’s recorded interests. Declarations of interest in relation to any particular agenda items are made at
each governance meeting. In the event that any conflicts of interest arise during a meeting, set processes are
followed in line with the Trust's governing document.
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GOVERNANCE (continued)

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer, the CEQ has responsibiiity for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees whers value for money can be improved,
inciuding the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has
delivered improved value for money during the year by:

« Management accounts are prepared on a monthly basis for the Chair of Trustees — these are also
periodically taken to, and discussed at, the Finance, Audit & Risk Cemmittes, which occur at least
termly and Trustees receive the accounts at least six times a year.

The school has beenh awarded two ‘unqualified’ opinions from our auditors, which demonsirates that the
school has robust processes and controls In place.

The budget-building process starts early in the year and is refined as more information on likely income
and expenditure becomes clearer. This is worked on by the Senior Leadership Team and shared with
the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee for challenge, before being approved by the Trustees.

Arrangements are in place to share our building for community use. We have reduced rates for iocal
community groups in order to fulfil our vision of being an integrated community-presence in the Feltham
area.

The school’s policy in relation fo tendering requires that a variety of quotes are sought for any significant
expenditure, depending on value, and that a robust tendering process is in place.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk fo a reasonable level rather than to eliminate ali risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonablie and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, o evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internai control has been in piace in Reach Academy Trust for the
period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. '

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance confrols that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by
the Board of Trustees.
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THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

s comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

regular reviews by the finance and general purposes Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital worke and expenditure
programmes; ,

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing {asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

ldentification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees:
e employed Buzzacott as internal auditer to perform three internal audits in the 2022-23 financial year.

The intemnal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

@ A review of core financial controls;
e A review of the Trust's payroll processes;
» A review of safeguarding policy and practice.

In line with guidance outlined in the Academy Trust Handbook, the internal controls at the Trust extend to both
financial and non-financial areas and the Board of Trustees and Finance, Audit & Risk Committee commission
a rolling programme of internal scrutiny on non-financial areas to provide assurance that the Trust's policies and
processes are being followed in a robust manner.

The Board of Trustees is presented with a review of internal scrutiny termly through the Finance, Audit & Risk
Committee. This reviews the systems of control and discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial responsibilities.
It annually prepares an annual summary report to the Committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conclusions o help the Committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.
There were no material control issues arising from the internal scrutiny and any issues arising have been

actioned.

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
As Accounting Officer, the CEOQ has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internat control.
During the year in question, the review has been informed by:

o the work of the internal auditor;

e the work of the external auditor;

¢ the school resource management self-assessment tool;

¢ the work of the Operations Director within the Academy Trust who has responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the resuit of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.
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Reach Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on “DZLM%ZS and signed on its behalf
by:

Judith Taco Matilda Browne
Trustee Accounting Officer
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Reach Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

As accounting officer of Reach Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust
Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregutarity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secrelary of Staie for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding nen-compliance have been discovered
to date. if any instances are identified after the date of this staiement, these will be notified o the Board of

Trustees and ESFA.

Matilda Browne
Accounting Officer
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
(A Cempany Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company iaw requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statemenis unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that pericd. In preparing these financial statements, the Trusiees are
required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the metheds and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023;
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitabie company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are aiso responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

------------------------------------------------

Judith Tacon
(Chair of Trustees)

Date: I\}\ W\N}W ’36}3
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF REACH
ACADEMY TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Reach Academy Trust (the 'academy trust) for the year ended 31
August 2023 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash
Fiows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of [reland’, the Charities SORP 2015 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skiills Funding Agency.

in our opinion the financial statements:

o give a true and fair view of the siate of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

o have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Gsnerally Accspted Accounting
Practice; and

J have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2018 and the Academies Accounts Direciion 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We condueted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
iaw. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statemenis section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with
the ethical requiremenis that are relevant fo our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
inciuding the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to evenis or
conditions that, individually or coilectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for

issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concermn are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF REACH
ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the infermation included in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required o determine whether this gives rise o a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performad, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

. the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic
Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retumns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the informaticn and explanations we require for our audit.
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF REACH
ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explainaed more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemenis that are free from material
misstatement, whether due io fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trusiees either infend {o liguidate the Academy Trust or fo cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and ic issue an Auditors’ Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nof a guarantse that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures

in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,

including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

e Obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the entity operates in, focusing on
those laws and regulations that had & direct effect on the financial statement:

Enquiry of management to identify any instances of known or suspected instances of fraud;

e Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and
claims;

Enaquiry of management about any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations;
Reviewing the conirol systems in place and testing the effectiveness of the controls;

e Performing audit work over the risk of management override of controls, including testing of journal entries
and other adjustments for appropriatness, evaluating the business rationale of significant transactions
outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for bias;

» Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; and

¢ Reviewing finacial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to asses compliance with
applicable laws and reguiations.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.crg.uk/audiiorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our

Auditors' Report.
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF REACH
ACADEMY TRUST {CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely {o the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

~ .
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-.t‘_ Y‘b L,__..-— Il':‘-l"\._kr L(..é__,_....

W

Rakesh Shaunak FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of
MHA

London, United Kingdom
Date:  20/12/2023

MHA is the trading name of Macintyre Hudson LLP, a limited Eability partnership in England and Wales
(registered number OC312313).
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO REACH
ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letier dated 4 November 2020 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA} as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement {o obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Reach Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have bsen
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made solely to Reach Academy Trust and ESFA in accardance with the terms of our engagement
ietter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Reach Academy Trust and ESFA those matters
we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest exient permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Reach Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this
report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Reach Academy Trust's accouniing officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Reach Academy Trust's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 13 March 2019 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial fransactions conform io the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibiliies for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our shgagement lsiter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrving out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financiai fransactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO REACH
ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We psirformed a limited assurance sngagement as
defined in our engagement letier.

The cobjective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as o obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence io express a negsative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us {o obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a iest basis, of evidence relevant to the regularily and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conciusions includes:

« Reviewing the minutes of the Governing Body and other evidence made available to us, relevant to our
consideration of regularity;

e A review of the objectives and activities of the Academy Trust, with reference to the income streams and

other information available to us as auditors;

Testing of sample of payroll payments to staff;

Testing of a sample of payments to suppliers and other third parties;

Testing of 2 sample of granis received and other income streams;

Consideration of governancs issues; and

Evaluating the internal control procedures and reporting lines, and testing as appropriate and making

appropriate enquiries of the Accounting Officer.

Conclusion

in the course of our werk, nothing has come to our aitention which suggest in all material respecis the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

MHk

Reporting Accountant
MHA

Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

Date: 20/12/2023
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUCGUST 2023

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants

Invesimenis
Charitable activities

Total income

Expendiiure on :
Charitable activities

Total expenditure

Net
income/{expenditure)

Other recognised
gains:

Actuarial gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes

Net movement in
funds

Recongciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Net movement in funds

Total funds carried
forward

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
Note £ £ £ £ £
4 59,145 - 73,561 132,706 21,855
6 184 - - 184 146
882,609 6,188,747 - 7,071,356 6,709,168
941,938 6,188,747 73,561 7,204,246 6,731,169
89 666,076 6,017,691 253,909 6,937,676 7,048,467
7 666,076 6,017,691 253,909 6,937,676 7,048,467

275,862 171,056 {180,248) 266,570 {317,298)
23 - 211,000 - 211,000 2,304,000
275,862 382,056 {180,348) 477,570 1,986,702
666,000 371,570 17,378,715 18,416,285 16,429,583
275,862 382,056 (180,348) 477,570 1,086,702
941,862 753,626 17,198,367 18,893,855 718,416,285

The Statement of Financial Aciivities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 37 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07634108

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Note
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 14
Current assets
Debtors 15
Cash at bank and in hand 21
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 18
Net current assets
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 23
Total net assets
Funds of the Academy Trust
Restricted funds:
Restricted fixed asset funds 17
Restricted general funds 17

Restricted funds excluding pension liability 17

Restricted general funds - pension reserve 17
Total restricted funds 17
Unrestricted funds 17
Total funds

2023

£

17,158,054

17,158,054
238,312
2,192,536
2,430,898

(695,097)

1,735,801

18,893,855

18,893,855
17,198,367
753,626
17,951,993

17,951,993

941,862

18,893,855

2022

£

17,370,965

17,370,965
291,630
1,406,678
1,698,308
(439,988)

1,258,320

18,629,285

(213,000)

18,416,285
17,378,715
584,570
17,963,285
(213,000)

17,750,285

666,000

18,416,285

The financial statements on pages 33 to 64 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are

signed on their behalf, by:
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07634106

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Judith Tacon
{Chair of Trustees)

Date: }\,\ WQ{ ’},@?\S

The notes on pages 37 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notles on pages 37 to 64 form part of these financial statements

Note

19

20

21,22

2023 2022

£ £

753,161 125,467
32,747 (57,026)
785,208 68,441
1,406,678 1,338,237
2,192,586 1,406,678
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1.

General information
Reach Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantes, incorporated in England and Wales.
The address of the registered office and principal place of operation are detailed is page 1.

The nature of the Academy Trust's operations and principal activity are detailed in the Trustees' Report.

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted {which have been applied consistently,

except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation unceriainty, is set out below.

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of reland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)}, the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA,

the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in Pound Stering which is the functional currency of the

Academy Trust and are rounded to the nearest Pound Sterling.

2.2 Going concemn

The Trusiees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a period of at least one vear from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material unceriainties about the Academy Trust's ability fo
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting in

preparing the financial statements.
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2.

Accounting policies {continued)

2.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and iis recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions-are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement o the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the resfricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entilement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the recsipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, inciuding the hire of facilities, Is recognised in the year it is receivable and fo the extent
the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2.

Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Expenditure

25

28

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
{o a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in setflement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the {oial of direct cosis and shared cosis, including suppori cosis
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are aliocated direcily
to that activity. Shared costs which contribufe to more then one activity and support cosis which are
not attributable fo a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the assef’s use.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundralsing activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amouni can be measured
reliably by the Academy Trust; this is ncrmally upon nofification of the interest paid cor payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposiied.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Pari 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, o the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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REACH ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2.

Accounting policies {continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assels have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expecied useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding reguiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Acfivities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assels under
gconstruction, at rates calculated to wrile off the cost of sach asset on a straight-line basis over its
expecied useful life, as foliows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property - B0 years straight lins
Piant and machinery - 20 - 25% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed assef is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assels and their recoverable amounis are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any irade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amouint prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and shori-term highly liguid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

2.10 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Bailance Sheet date as a resuli of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic bansfit will be required in seftlement, and the amount
of the seitlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
Trust anticipates it will pay to setile the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.
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2

Accounting policies {continued)

2.11 Provisicns

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a resuit
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measurad at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time vaiue of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discountad at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within inierest payable and similar charges.

2.12 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only helds basic financial instrumenis as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and cther debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in Note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at hank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in Note 16. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instrumenis disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed io be a financial
liability, as the cash seftiement has aiready taken place and there is an obiigation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument.

2.13 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged fo the Siatement of Financial Activities on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.

Accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employges’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets fo assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit methed and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounis charged o operating surplus are the
current service costs and the cosis of scheme infroductions, benefit changes, seitlements and
curtzilments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

2.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used fowards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trusiees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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3. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continuaily evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed o be reascnable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounis of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a varely of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a fuil
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgment:

The Trustees consider there to be no critical areas of judgement that affect the amounts recognised in
these financial statements.

4. income from donations and capitai grants
Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023
£ £ £
Ponaticns 59,145 - 59,145
Capital granis - 73,561 73,561
58,145 73,561 132,706
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4,

Income from donations and capital grants (continued)

Donations
Capital grants

Funding for the Academy Trust's charitable activities

Educational Operations

DfE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG)

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Pupil Premium
Universal Infant Free School Meais
Others

Other Government grants
Local authority revenue grants
Other Government revenue grants

Other income from the Academy Trust’s educational
operations

Restricted
Unrestricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022
£ £ £
5,097 - 5,097
- 16,758 18,758
5,097 16,758 21,855
Unresfricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023
£ £ £
- 4,786,540 4,786,540
- 438,249 438,249
- 52,564 52,564
- 223,874 223,874
- 5,501,227 5,501,227
- 597,731 597,731
- 89,789 89,789
- 687,520 687,520
882,609 - 882,609
882,609 5,188,747 7,071,356
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5. Funding for the Academy Trust's charitable activities {continued)

Educational Operations

DFE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG)

Other DIE/ESFA grants
Pupil Premium

Universal Infant Free School Meals

Rates Relief
QOthers

Other Government granis

Local Authority revenue granis
Other Government revenue grants

Other income from the Academy Trust's educational

operations

Total 2022

6. Investment income

Bank interest receivable

Bank interest receivable

Unresiricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022

£ £ £

- 4 611,885 4,611,885

- 398,044 398,044

- 59,583 59,583

- 16,800 16,800

- 101,215 101,215

- 5,187,527 5,187,527

- 534,274 534,274

- 301,224 301,224

- 835,498 835,498
618,689 67,454 686,143
618,689 6,090,479 6,709,168
Unrestricted Total

funds funds

2023 2023

£ £

184 184

Unrestricted Total

funds funds

2022 2022

£ £

146 146
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7.

Total Expenditure

Educational Operations:

Direct costs
Allocated support cosis

Total 2023

Educational Operations:

Direct costs
Aliocated support costs

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2023 2023 2023 2023

£ £ £ £
4,303,200 - 426,023 4,729,223
735,693 539,827 832,933 2,208,453
5,038,883 539,827 1,358,956 6,937,676
Staif Costs Premises OQther Total
2022 2022 2022 2022

£ £ £ £
4,131,829 - 408,513 4,640,442
1,147,677 462,672 897,676 2,508,025
5,279,606 462,672 1,306,189 7,048,467
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8.

Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities - by fund

Unrestricted Restricted

funds funds Total

2023 2023 2023

£ £ £

Educational Operations 666,076 6,271,600 6,937,676

Total 2023 666,076 6,271,600 6,937,676

Unrestricted Restricted

funds funds Total

2022 2022 2022

£ £ £

Educational Operations 635,362 6,413,705 7,048,467

Total 2022 635,362 6,413,105 7,048,467
Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities - by type

Activities

undertaken Support Total

directly costs funds

2023 2023 2023

£ £ £

Educational Operations 4,728,223 2,208,453 6,937,676

Total 2023 4,729,223 2,208,453 6,937,676
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8. Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities - by type (continued)
Activities
undertaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2022 2022 2022
£ £ £
Educational Operations 4,540,442 2,608,025 7,048,467
Total 2022 4,540,442 2,508,025 7,048,467
Analysis of support costs
Total Total
funds funds
2023 2022
£ £
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 6,000 35,000
Staff costs 729,693 1,102,677
Depreciation 253,909 248,613
Technology costs 95,238 140,827
Premises cosis 539,827 462,672
Other costs 535,496 483,003
Govemance costs 27,448 34,439
Legal costs 20,842 794
2,208,453 2,508,025
10. Net income/(expenditure}
Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes:
2023 2022
£ £
Operating iease rentals 20,938 32,632
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 253,909 248,613
Fees paid to auditors for:
- Auditor's remuneration - Audit of the financial statements 13,000 12,000
- Auditor's remuneration - Cther services 1,500 1,500
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11. Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social securily costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs
Other costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments

b. 8taff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

Teachers
Administration and support
Management

2023 2022

£ £
3,703,853 3,607,840
392,000 372,721
740,618 1,102,336
4,836,476 5,082,897
196,417 151,709

- 10,000

6,000 35,000
5,038,893 5,279,606
2023 2022

£ £

- 10,000

- 10,000

2023 2022

No. No.

47 51

53 41

15 15

115 107
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11.

12.

Staff (continued)
c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefiis {exciuding emplover pension costs} exceeded
£60,000 was:

2023 2022

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 5 2

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 1 1
[n the band £80,001 - £90,000 1 -

In the band £80,001 - £100,000 1 1

The above employees participated in both the Teachers' Pension Scheme and the Local Government
Pension Scheme. During the year ended 31 August 2023, pension contributions for these staff amounted
to £120,915 (2022 - £54,329).

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trusiees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits
{(including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key
management personnel for their services o the Academy Trust was £1,192,272 (2022 - £1,187,800 ). The
Academy Trust considered 14 (2022 - 13) members of staff to be Key Management Personnel.

Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

One or more Trusiees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The principal and other staif Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2023 2022

£ £

R Cramer, CEO Remuneration 95,000 - 90,000 -
100,000 95,000

Pension contributions paid 20,000 - 20,000 -

25,000 25,000

During the year, retirement benefits were accruing to no Trusiees (2022 - none) in respect of defined
contribution pension schemes.

During the year ended 31 August 2023, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2022 - £NIL).
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13. Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
altemmative to insurance whers UK govemment funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions cccurring whilst on
Academy Trust business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. li is not possible to quantify the Trustees
and officers indemnity siement from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

14. Tangible fixed assets
Freehold Plant and
property machinery Total
£ £ £
Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2022 18,810,636 1,028,186 19,838,822
Additions - 40,998 40,998
At 31 August 2023 18,810,636 1,069,184 19,879,820
Depreciation
At 1 September 2022 1,572,419 895,438 2,467,857
Charge for the year 186,160 67,749 253,909
At 31 August 2023 1,758,579 963,187 2,721,766
Net book vaiue
At 31 August 2023 17,052,057 i05,997 17,158,054
At 31 August 2022 17,238,217 132,748 17,370,865
15. Debtors
2023 2022
£ £
Due within one year
Trade debtors 23,714 30,125
Other debtors 48,232 4,523
Prepayments and accrued income 166,366 256,982
238,312 291,630
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16. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2
Resources deferred during the vear
Amounts released from previous periods

Beferred income at 31 August

2023 2022

£ £
157,246 86,039
102,145 97,836
106,198 107,139
329,508 148,974
695,097 439,988
2023 2022

£ £
76,349 75,608
221,186 76,349
(76,349) (75,608)
221,186 76,349

At the Balance Sheet date, the Academy Trust was hoiding funds received in advance for:

Universal Infant Free Schoeol Meals
Teaching Internships Programme
New School Project

Charity Collectcns

Early Years Funding

Overpaid Lunch Fees

KS2 Universal Free School Meals
Local Authority other funding
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17. Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General funds 666,000 941,938 (666,076) - - 941,862
Restricted general
funds
Generai Annual Grant
{GAG) 584,570 4,786,540 (4,617,484) - - 753,626
Pupil Premium - 438,249 (438,249) - - -
Other DiE / ESFA
revenue grants - 276,438 (276,438) - - -
Other DfE Group
revenue grants - - - - - -
Local Authority
revenue grants - 597,731 (597,731) - - -
Other Government
revenue granis - 89,789 {89,789) - - -
Other Educational
income - - - - - -
Pension reserve {213,000) - 2,000 - 211,000 -
371,570 6,188,747  (6,017,691) - 211,000 753,626
Restricted fixed
asset funds
NBV of fixed assets 17,370,965 - {253,909) 40,998 - 17,158,054
Dft / ESFA capital
grants 7,750 73,561 - {40,998) - 40,313
17,378,715 73,561 {253,909) - - 17,198,367
Total Restricied
funds 17,750,285 6,262,308 (6,271,600) - 211,000 17,951,993
Total funds 18,416,285 7,204,246  (6,937,676) - 211,000 18,893,855

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
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17.

Statement of funds {continued}
The General fund represents the income and expenditure for which no fund restrictions apply.

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represenis the core funding for the educational aclivities of the
Academy Trust via the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) by the Depariment for Education
{DfE). The GAG fund has been set up because the GAG must be used for the normal running costs of the
Academy Trust.

The Pupil Premium fund represents the restricted funding from the Education and Skills Funding Agency
to raise the aitainment of disadvantaged pupils and close the gap between them and their peers.

The Other DIE/ESFA revenue grants fund represents the restricted funding received from the DfE/ESFA
for spegcific purposes.

The Local Authorify revenue grants fund has been set up to recognise the income received from the local
council as a contribution towards the cost of the Academy Trust's revenue expenditure.

The Other Government revenue grants fund has been set up to recognise the resfricted funding received
from all other Government bedies which fall ouiside the scope of core funding.

The Pension reserve fund has been created to separately identify the pension deficit inherited from the
Local Authority upon conversion o Academy Trust status, and through which all the pension scheme
movements are recognised.

The NBV of fixed assets fund has been set up to recognise the tangible assets held by the school and is
equivalent to the net book value of tangible fixed assets. Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is aliocated
to this fund.

The DiE / ESFA capital grants fund has been created fo recognise capital grants received for the purpose
of the acquisition of tangible fixed assets. As tangible fixed assets are purchased, a transfer is made to
the NBV of fixed assets fund.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.
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17. Statement of funds {continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted funds

General funds

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant

(GAG)
Pupil Premium

Other DfE f ESFA revenue

grants

Other DfE Group revenue

grants

Local Authority revenue

grants

Other Government
revenue grants

Other Educational income

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset

funds
NBYV of fixed assets

DfE / ESFA capital granis

Total Restricted funds

Total funds

Balance at
1 Balancs at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
677,430 623,932 (635,362) - - 666,000
321,505 4,671,885 (4,283,898) (64,922) - 584,570

- 398,044 (398,044) - - -

- 249,976 (249,976) - - -

- 2,031 (2,031) - - -

- 534,274 (534,274} - - -

- 226,815 {226,815) - - -

- 67,454 (67,454) - - -
{2,115,000) - (402,000) - 2,304,600 {213,000)
{1,793,495) 6,090,479 (6,164,492} (64,922} 2,304,000 371,570
17,545,648 - (248,613) 73,930 - 17,370,965

- 16,758 - (9,008) - 7,750
17,545,648 16,758 (248,613) 64,822 - 17,378,715
15,752,153 6,107,237 (6,413,705) - 2,304,000 17,750,285

6,731,168 - 2,304,000 18,416,285

16,426,583

{7,048,467)
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18.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Unrestricted
funds
2023
£
Tangible fixed asseis -
Current assets 934.618
Creditors due within one year (12,892)
Difference 20,136

Restricted

Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023

£ £ £

- 17,158,054 17,158,054
1,455,967 40,313 2,430,898
(682,205) - (695,097)

(20,136) - -

Total 941,862

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

753,626 17,198,367 18,893,855

Restricted
Resiricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022
£ £ £
- 17,370,965 17,370,965
1,024,558 7,750 1,698,308
{438,988) - (439,988}
{213,000) - (213,000)

Unrestricted

funds

2022

£
Tangible fixed assets -

Current assels 666,000
Creditors due within one year -
Provisions for liabilities and charges -

668,000

Total

371,570 17,378,715 18,416,285
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19.

20.

21,

Reconciliation of net incomel/{expenditure) te net cash flow from operating activities

Net income/{expenditure} for the vear (as per Stafement of Financial

Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Increase/{decrease) in creditors

Net cash provided by/{used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment Income
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DTE Group

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022

£ £
266,570  (317,298)
253,908 248,613
(73,561) (16,758)
(184) (146)
(8,000) 367,000
6,000 35,000
53,318 (39,927)
255,100  (151,017)
753,161 125,467
2023 2022

£ £

184 146
{40,998) (73,930)
73,561 16,758
32,747 (57,026)
2023 2022

£ £
2,192,586 1,406,678
2,192,586 1,406,678
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22,

23.

Analysis of changes in net debt

At1 :
September At 31
2022 Cash flows August 2023
£ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 1,406,678 785,908 2,192,586

1,406,678 785,908 2,192,586

Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough Hounslow Pension Fund.
Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019.

Contributicns amounting to £87.972 were payabie to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £86,039)
and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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23.

Pension commitments {continued)
Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Empioyer Cost Cap)} Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is fo specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are depsndent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Depariment for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultaticn are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
tevy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future confributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £186,100 million, giving a
noticnal past service deficit of £22,000 millicn

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE raie is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of retumn is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed 1o be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 Aprll 2024.
The empioyer's pension costs paid tc TPS in the year amounted to £633,000 (2022 - £538,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporiing documentation is on the Teachsrs' Pensions website
(https://iwww.ieacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded mulii-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
schems. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate frustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £260,000 (2022 -
£248,000), of which employer's contributions fotalied £205,000 (2022 - £7196,000} and employees’
contributions totalled £55,000 (2022 - £52,000}. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22.1 per
cent for employers and between 5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guaraniee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came info force on 18 July 2013.
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23. Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

2023
%

3.9
29
5.2

2022
%

3.9
2.9
42

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring foday
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

2023

Years

207
23.2

22.0
246

2022
Years

21.0
23.5

22,3
24.9

The following represents the projected service costs with the movements in assumptions as deiailed

below:

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 ysar decrease
CPl rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

2023
£000
{(114)
126
125
{116}
120
(120)

2022
£000
(56)
58
44
(43)
57
(55)
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23. Pension commitments {continued)

Share of scheme asseis

The Academy Trusf's share of the assets in the scheme was:

At 31 Af 37 August

August 2023 2022

£ £

Equities 1,601,000 843,000

Gilts 75,000 64,000

Corporate bonds 135,000 135,000

Property 66,000 68,000

Cash and other liquid assets 60,000 7,000

Infrastructure 27,000 11,000

Absolute return portfolio 193,000 182,000

Total market value of assets 1,557,000 1,310,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £20,000 (2022 - £84,000).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2023 2022

£ £

Current service cost (197,000) (563,000)

Interest income 59,000 21,000

Interest cost {65,000) {56,000)

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (203,000) {598,000)
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23.

Pension commitments (continued}

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations wers as follows:

2023 2022
£ £
At 1 September 1,523,000 3,280,600
Current service cost 197,600 563,000
Interest cost 65,000 56,000
Employee contributions 55,000 52,000
Actuarial gains (302,000) (2,410,000)
Benefits paid 19,000 {18,000)
At 31 August 1,557,000 1,623,000
Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2023 2022
£ £
At 1 September 1,310,000 1,165,000
Interest income 59,000 21,000
Actuarial losses {21,000) {106,000)
Employer contributions 205,000 196,000
Employee contributions 55,000 52,000
Benefits paid 19,000 (18,000)
At 31 August 1,557,060 1,310,000
2023 2022
£ £
Reconciiiation of opening to closing defined benefit pension scheme
liability
Balance brought forward at 1 September 213,000 2,115,000
Defined benefit pension scheme cost iess contributions payable {8,000) 367,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 6,000 35,000
Actuarial (gains)/losses (211,000) (2,304,000)
Balance brought forward at 31 August - 213,000
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24,

25.

2023 2022
£ £

Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:
Present value of the defined bensfit obligation {1,557,000) (71,523,000}
Fair value of scheme assets 1,557,000 1,310,000
Defined benefit pension scheme asset/(liahility) - {213,000)

The fair value of the pension plan assets at 31 August 2021 is in excess of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at that date. This gives rise to a surplus of £9,000.

The surplus is recognised in the financial statements only to the extend that the Trust can recover that
surplus, either throguh a reduction in future contributions or through a refund to the Trust.

The Trust is not able to determine that future contributions will be reduced and it is not possible for the
Trust to receive a refund, as the specific conditions for this have not been met. Therefore, an asset
ceiling surplus of £9,000 is not recognised as an asset at 31 August 2023 as the Trust is not able to
determine that future contributions will be reduced or that a refund of the surpius will be available for the
foreseeable future.

Operating lease commitmenis

At 31 August 2023 the Academy Trust had commitments to maks future minimum lease paymenis under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2023 2022

£ £

Not later than 1 year 1,970 25,732
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 20,000 25,732
21,970 51,464

Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to coniribute to the asseis of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities coniracted
before hefshe ceases to be a member.
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26.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the frustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
fransactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obiaining their approval where required, and with the
Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and
related party transactions.

The Academy Trust does not have any formal relationships with other schools but is actively seeking o
build relationships as the opportunities arise.

Ed Vainker is a Trusiee of Hounslow Education Parinership, which is a related party. In the year 22-23
the Trust received services from the Hounslow Education Partnership. The invoices throughout the year
amounted to £6,083.54. Ed Vainker became a Trustee of Confederation of School Trusts in summer
2022, In the academic year 2022-23 the trust paid £270 in membership fees.

Rebecca Cramer is a Trustee of First Give. in 2022-23 a payment of £500 was made for the First Give
Programme which Year 9 took part in.

The Reach Foundation is the corporate member of the Reach Academy Trust. As part of its charitable
activities it runs a cradle to career support organisation called the Reach Children's Hub in Feltham which
works closely with the school and supports its pupils and families. The Foundation has a service level
agreement with the school to provide administrative and support services to the Reach Children's Hub.
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